
 
                                         Purchasing Division 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
 
DATE: July 21, 2017 
FROM: City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 
TO:  All Offerors 
RE:  Persigo Wastewater Treatment Plant Diffuser Outfall Improvements  
  Project IFB-4396-17-DH 
 
Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the 
requirements have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date 
as hereinafter described. 
 
Please make note of the following clarifications: 
 

1. Replace the original Bid Schedule with the updated Bid Schedule that is attached to this 
Addendum.  The updated Bid Schedule includes the following changes: 

1. Temporary Diversion (Coffer Dam) has been changed to a Lump 
Sum pay item. 

2. A separate pay item for Traffic Control (Complete in Place) has 
been added to the Bid Schedule. 

3. Minor Contract Revisions dollar amount has been increased to 
$100,000. 

4. At bottom of Bid Schedule, Bidder is required to which method of 
boring they intend to use on the project. 

 
2. Specification Section 15064, High Density Polyethylene Pipe, is hereby revised for this 

project as follows: 
 

Replace sheet 15064-1 with the updated sheet 15064-1 attached to this 
Addendum. 
 

3. The City learned after the pre-bid meeting that there is an 8 to 10-week lead time on the 
Tideflex diffuser manifold.  Once a construction contract is executed and signed, the 
Contractor shall order the Tideflex diffuser manifold.  The City is going to contact 
Tideflex and discuss options for trying to get the diffuser ordered prior to a construction 
contract being signed. 
 

4. Remove and replace the first sentence in Special Condition 3.3.9 with the following: 
 

Time of Completion:  The scheduled time of completion for the Project is 143 
Calendar Days from the starting date specified in the Notice to Proceed.  City 
holidays recognized during this period are Thanksgiving (Nov. 23rd), the day after 
Thanksgiving (Nov. 24th), Christmas (Dec. 25th), and New Year’s (Jan. 1st).  



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Construction work on the Friday after Thanksgiving is negotiable.  All other 
holidays are to be no work days. 

 
5. If necessary, Bidders can download construction plans from Stantec Engineering’s ftp 

site at the following link: 
Browser link: https://tmpsftp.stantec.com  
Login name: s0727145938 
Password: 1922132 
Disk Quota: 2GB 
Expiry Date: 7/27/2017 
 

6. Attached to this Addendum is an email from Joel Berschauer, CDOT Utility Permit 
Coordinator, regarding the bore under I-70.  Per Joel’s email, CDOT would consider 
allowing the contractor to shorten the bore up by about 50-ft on the south side of the 
interstate.  See email for more details. 
 
Also attached to this Addendum is a blank copy of a standard CDOT Utility Permit, 
CDOT’s Standard Provisions for Utilities/Relocation/Special-Use Permits, and CDOT’s 
Region 3 Guidelines for Trenchless Technology Construction.  All Bidders should be 
familiar with these documents prior to submitting a bid. 
 
The Special Provisions that will be included in CDOT’s final utility permit that will be 
issued at a later date will reference Project Specification 02612 and this Addendum.  See 
Joel’s email. 

 
7. Specification Section 02612, Steel Pipe and Fittings, is hereby revised for this project as 

follows: 
 
In section 3.1 – Steel Casing Pipe Installation, replace subsection 3.1.D.3 with the 
following: 
 

3. Frequency of visual and survey inspections during boring operations 
underneath both the eastbound and westbound asphalt pavement surfaces shall 
be as follows: 

 Contractor shall plan for three visual inspections per day (morning, 
noon, afternoon) of roadway surface during boring operations. 

 Contractor shall drive I-70 at least once a day in both the eastbound 
and westbound directions to see if any vertical change in roadway 
surface is noticeable in a vehicle. 

 Contractor shall have roadway surface surveyed every third working 
day to compare elevations with the baseline survey points to see if any 
movement has occurred. 

 
8. All Bidders shall be aware that if CDOT’s emergency maintenance crews are required to 

close or provide traffic control on I-70 due to a changed roadway surface as a result of 
the boring operation, that CDOT will bill the Contractor at an hourly rate until the 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Contractor is able to get control of the situation and take over on traffic control and repair 
operations.  All repair costs on I-70, if required due to the boring operation, will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor.  See Specification Section 02612. 
 

Questions from Bidders and answers are provided below: 
 
Q-1: Is there an ASTM classification for the acceptable HDPE?  Specifically, I would like to 

know if Contech’s steel reinforced HDPE pipe is acceptable? 
 
A-1: Replace sheet 15064-1 in specification section 15064, High Density Polyethylene Pipe, 

with the revised sheet 15064-1 that is attached to this addendum.  Steel reinforced HDPE 
pipe will not be accepted on this project. 

 
Q-2: Will there be any domestic requirements on this project? ie: the steel casing pipe crossing 

I-70? 
 
A-2: Per the Specifications and City of Grand Junction’s contract documents, there are no 

domestic requirements for steel products on this project. 
 
Q-3: What is the estimated largest diameter cobble rock that will be encountered during the 

boring operation? 
 
A-3: Mike Berry, with Huddleston-Berry Engineering and Testing, answered that there could 

be the potential to encounter a large cobble that is 12-inches and greater in size, but the 
vast majority of cobble rocks encountered should be 6-inches and smaller.  The City dug 
a test hole on Friday, July 14th in the southwest corner of the Persigo property to show 
the bidders the size rock that should be typical during this project. 

 
Q-4: Who performs the dye test on the diffuser? 
 
A-4:  Per Special Condition 3.3.34, the Owner (City) will perform the dye test. 
 
Q-5: What type of RCP pipe gasket is required on this project? 
 
A-5: Information is provided in Specification Section 15074, Part 2 – Products, 2.1 

Fabrication, subsection B. 
 
Q-6: Please clarify the 7-day bypass pumping set up location on sheet 11 of 17, approximately 

80-ft temporary pipe with open discharge to Persigo Wash? 
 
A-6: The discharge pipe alignment shown on sheet 11 of 17 is shown incorrectly.  The 

discharge pipe shall go from the pump assembly to the Persigo Wash discharge headwall 
area which is about 80-ft in distance.  There is no discharge into the existing manhole. 

 
Q-7: Dewatering of Coffer Dam open discharge downstream into Colorado River? 
 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

A-7: It’s the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain a CDPHE Dewatering Permit and to 
discharge per the requirements of the Dewatering Permit. 

 
Q-8: Does dewatering permit have any discharge requirements? (i.e. NTU 

requirement/discharge testing) 
 
A-8: It’s the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain a CDPHE Dewatering Permit and to 

discharge per the requirements of the Dewatering Permit. 
 
Q-9: The time frame seems unusually tight for a project of this size given the dewatering, 

cofferdam and boring. The materials will not be ready for at least 30 days after submittal 
and approval. The boring subcontractors are telling us their duration for the project will 
be 90 days of work. We are seeing this as a 200 working day project. 

 
A-9: See revised time of completion in this Addendum. 
 
Q-10: The HDPE 54” pipe in the 60” casing shows no casing spacer detail; will a detail be 

provided? 
 
A-10: See Detail #2 on sheet 14 of 17 in the construction plans.  Also refer to Specification 

Section 02612, Steel Pipe and Fittings, for information regarding the casing spacers. 
 
Q-11: The 60-inch casing is unusually small for the carrier pipe, leaving little room for an 

annular grout tube, will the casing be upsized? 
 
A-11: Upsize is permitted.  The specified 61.5-inch O.D. casing is considered the minimum 

casing diameter permitted. Standard size casing is accepted above 61.5 inches, which 
meet the other contract document requirements. Filling of annular space between casing 
and carrier pipe will still be required along with casing seals and casing spacers. 

 
Q-12: The 54-inch HDPE pipe will have an exterior weld bead, how are we to deal with this to 

insure weld integrity as the pipe is pushed through the casing, this bead will be subject to 
abnormal wear and tearing as it is forced through the casing? 

 
A-12: It is the responsibility of the Contractor to determine the best means and methods for 

installing the new 54-inch HDPE pipe inside the casing pipe without damaging and/or 
exerting unreasonable pulling/pushing forces on the HDPE pipe.  Also, the casing 
spacers should help to keep the HDPE pipe elevated in the casing pipe so the weld beads 
are not getting hung up in the casing pipe.  The Contractor can also grind off the weld 
beads if necessary. 

Q-13: Has the City and Engineer reviewed alternate pipe materials, Hobas pipe or DIP for the 
carrier pipe under I-70? 

 
A-13: No. 
 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Q-14: If RCP pipe is used in lieu of HDPE, will the larger casing and bore be paid for as a value 
engineered change order? 

 
A-14: Reinforced Concrete Pipe (RCP) will not be used inside of the casing pipe. 
 
Q-15: Please confirm that there is no existing prescribed City or Stantec plan in place for water 

control at the river work? 
 
A-15: There is no existing prescribed City or Stantec plan for controlling the river water.  It’s 

the Contractor’s responsibility to come up with a plan for diverting river water and 
dewatering the pipe trench in the river channel. The City and Stantec will review the 
Contractor’s proposed means and methods for diverting the water as part of the 
submittal review process. 

 
Q-16: Please confirm that the shown limits of construction in the Colorado river are 

nonexclusive of any cofferdam work? 
 
A-16: The coffer dam needs, to the best of the contractor’s ability, to stay within the easements 

the project obtained from the Colorado Parks and Wildlife. 
 
Q-17: Will the cofferdam need to remain in place throughout the testing period? 
 
A-17: No. 
 
Q-18: How will the City determine if the contractors planned cofferdam and associated work is 

beyond the work limits? 
 
A-18: The Contractor is responsible for having the temporary construction easements staked 

early on in the project so the project limits are shown in the field.  The City and 
Contractor will have to “eyeball” the coffer dam out in the river to see that it’s within the 
easements acquired. 

 
Q-19: Is builders risk insurance required on this project? 
 
A-19: No.  Insurance requirements for City projects are shown within the City of Grand 

Junction’s Standard Contract Documents.  These contract documents are available on 
the City’s website under the Engineering webpage at: 
http://www.gjcity.org/residents/engineering/manualspermits/  

 
Q-20: If the boring operation takes place 24/7 will sufficient inspection time be allocated by the 

City? 
 
A-20: If circumstances require that the boring contractor needs to work 24/7 on the boring 

operations, the City will work to see that proper inspection is provided.  CDOT 
acceptance will also be needed for the boring contractor to work at night.  Further 
discussion will be necessary if the Contractor is pursuing a 24-hour work schedule. 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Q-21: Will a rolling closure be accepted for the survey check daily on I-70? 
 
A-21: The City left a voicemail message with CDOT’s Joel Berschauer, Utility Permit 

Coordinator, regarding a rolling closure.  At the time of issuance of Addendum #2, the 
City hadn’t heard from Joel.  The City believes CDOT would be okay if the Contractor 
decided to use a rolling closure for the I-70 survey checks.  

 
Q-22: Will Uniform Traffic Control (UTC) be required for the daily survey checks? 
 
A-22: Traffic control will be required for the survey checks along I-70, both eastbound and 

westbound.  Traffic control plan will have to be approved by CDOT prior to any survey 
work is allowed within CDOT right-of-way. 

 
Q-23: What is the duration of the risk assigned to the I-70 settlement failure? Is this under the 

standard warranty, is this extended, does the City share any risk with this bore? Should 
the warranty time frame be extended? 

 
A-23: The City’s standard warranty period is one-year.  The one-year warranty period starts on 

the date Final Acceptance is given to the Contractor.  The one-year warranty will cover 
all work the Contractor performs, including any repairs made to I-70.  Refer to 
Specification Section 02612, Steel Pipe and Fittings, for the Contractor’s responsibilities 
for the boring operation. 

 
Q-24: Is there a designated location for the pipe spoils within the City limits? 
 
A-24: No. 
 
Q-25: Please clarify the number of trees to be removed on the project. 
 
A-25: The majority of large vegetation that needs to be removed along the alignment of the 

diffuser pipeline and in the area of the boring operations are large tamarisk plants.  It’s 
believed that the actual count on trees to be removed is zero.  However, large tamarisk 
plants will need to be removed in a couple areas.  The number of tamarisk plants to be 
removed is unknown at this time as a result of the tamarisk being grouped together and 
not knowing where one plant ends and the other plant starts. 

 
Q-26: Please verify the diameter of the pipe from the current drop box to the outfall that will 

need to be flow-filled. 
 
A-26: 48-inch RCP Pipe.  See description of pay item for “Abandon Effluent Pipe in Place” in 

Specification Section 01025. 
 
Q-27: Will CLSM, flashfill be acceptable for filling the abandoned pipe? 
 
A-27: Both Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM) and Flashfill will be acceptable methods 

for abandoning the effluent pipe and manhole structure. 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Q-28: Will the bypass of the effluent need to remain operational while the State reviews the 
operation and approves the new diffuser? 

 
A-28: I believe the bypass pumping assembly (be on standby at least) will have to remain 

operational while the City and State test the diffuser. 
 
Q-29: Can the color dye test be performed in the dry? 
 
A-29: No.  The City and the State what to see how the diffuser mixes with the river water. 
 
Q-30: If this test is performed in the wet and the design of the system is a failure or unaccepted 

by the state, whom is responsible for the reinstallation of the coffer dam structure, 
liquidated damages and corrective actions? 

 
A-30: There’s not going to be a failure!  As long as the diffuser and all the piping is installed 

per plan, the diffuser should operate the way it was designed in computer fluid dynamics 
modeling. 

 
Q-31: When will the Colorado River be clear enough, per 3.3.34 paragraph 2, and whom makes 

the determination? 
 
A-31: During the late fall and winter season, the Colorado River should be clear enough to 

perform the dye testing.  The City will make the call on the clarity of the river.  As long as 
there hasn’t been a recent rainstorm or a quick snowmelt, the river water should be clear 
enough to perform the dye test. 

 
Q-32: Should this water clarity issue interfere with contractor’s normal operations on other 

projects, will the City be covering the cost to re-mobilize and return to the project for 
completion? 

 
A-32: This discussion can happen when there is a construction contract in-place and the 

project is at that stage.  Right now the City isn’t going to commit to such a request. 
 
Q-33: Please provide a timeline for State acceptance of the diffuser? 
 
A-33: The Colo. Dept. of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE/State) will make periodic 

inspection visits to the project to see the progress being made and to answer any 
questions that might need the State to answer.  The State intends to visit the project about 
14-days prior to the projects final completion.  In this 14-day period the project will need 
to be at a point for performing the dye testing.  The City and the Contractor will work 
together on coordinating the State’s visit for dye testing and making sure the State is 
satisfied with the project and the projects outcome. 

 
Q-34: Does the effluent box require standard or epoxy rebar? 
 
A-34: Standard (Black) rebar per Specification Section 03200, Concrete Reinforcement. 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

Q-35: Can a traffic control line item be added to the project? 
 
A-35: Yes.  See updated Bid Schedule attached to this Addendum. 
 
Q-36: Can a potholing item be added to the project? 
 
A-36: No.  If potholing is necessary during the project, the City and Contractor can discuss 

potholing at that time. 
 
Q-37: What is the landscape maintenance and warranty duration? 
 
A-37: Duration for landscape maintenance is 1-year.  Project warranty is 1-year from the Final 

Acceptance date. 
 
Q-38: Can the City provide a waterproofing detail into the plan set on the diffuser box, or a list 

of what is expected or currently installed? 
 
A-38: To the best of the City’s knowledge, no waterproofing is required on the concrete for the 

effluent box modifications.  Rx Waterstop is called out to be installed in the cold joint 
locations of the effluent box. 

 
Q-39: Will there be a special condition on the wetland topsoil storage? Will this material need 

to be constantly wetted? Will a pay item be added for the extra handling and care with the 
Wetland Topsoil? 

 
A-39: Topsoil and Wetland Topsoil shall be per Section 207, Topsoil, of the CDOT 

Specifications. 
 
Q-40: Please clarify the material, size and construction method of the groundwater barriers as 

shown in the plans. 
 
A-40: Groundwater Barriers (Cutoff Walls) shall be installed along the diffuser pipeline at 

locations shown to inhibit the movement of ground water through the screen rock 
bedding.  Barrier walls shall be 5 to 10 feet long and consist of material meeting the 
requirements provided in specification section 02300.  Barrier walls shall be constructed 
by discontinuing the installation of bedding and haunch backfill material and installing 
approved native or imported materials. 

Q-41: The specs show that these groundwater barriers are constructed of bedding material is 
this correct? 

 
A-41: No.  See response above and see Specification Section 02300, Subsection 2.3.F, Barrier 

Material. 
 
Q-42: Please confirm that these are slab base 72” Dia. Manholes, and not cast in place box base 

manhole bases with precast riser stacks. 
 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

A-42: Yes, CDOT manhole slab base details are to be used on this project.  For 48-inch RCP 
pipe and 54-inch HDPE pipe, a 90-inch diameter manhole is needed. 

 
Q-43: Please provide a detail sheet showing the “drop” manhole and its invert at the transition 

from the 48” pipe to the diffuser stack. 
 
A-43: Due to time, no additional detail is available for the drop manhole other than the 

elevations shown for the drop manhole on sheet 10 of 17 in the construction plans. 
 
Q-44: Are the manholes coated or dampproofed on the exterior, there are no notes addressing 

this in the plans? 
 
A-44: No coating or damp-proofing on the exterior of the manholes is required. 
 
Q-45: Due to the timeframe required for the completion of the tunnel, we request that the time 

of completion be extended. 
 
A-45: See revised time of completion in this Addendum. 
 
Q-46: The geotech report states that micro-tunneling (MTBM) is the preferred method and that 

HDD can also be considered for the trenchless crossing.  Are these the only two 
allowable methods?  We don’t believe that HDD is a viable option in this diameter, at 
this length, at .5% grade, at 0.1’ tolerance, under I-70 and in these ground conditions.  

 
A-46: Other trenchless alternative methods will be considered, as long as the contract 

specifications can be met or exceeded. Consideration will need to account for the 
geotechnical conditions encountered along the bore, including cobbles and a 0.5% grade 
which limits the number of trenchless technologies that can achieve these requirements. 
Dewatering is permitted. 

 
Q-47: We don’t believe that any open-face method – auger boring or TBM - is feasible in these 

saturated, running ground conditions. 
 
A-47: Micro-tunneling is the preferred method for a number of reasons including, but not 

limited to the ability to achieve line and grade requirements. Horizontal Auger Boring 
and Guided Auger Boring through saturated soils containing gravel, cobbles and sand is 
not recommended. Horizontal Direction Drilling is not recommended.  

Q-48: We don’t believe that a grade critical pipe ram is feasible at a length of 420 LF. 
 
A-48: The use of pipe ramming and guided pipe ramming would be difficult to achieve the 

grade requirements provided in the contract documents. Pipe ramming is not a 
recommended trenchless technology for this application. 

 
Q-49: The 61.5” O.D. casing as spec’d is a non-standard size for tunnel equipment.  Will an 

upsize in casing diameter be allowed? 
 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

A-49: Upsize is permitted.  The specified 61.5-inch O.D. casing is considered the minimum 
casing diameter permitted. Standard size casing is accepted above 61.5 inches, which 
meet the other contract document requirements. Filling of annular space between casing 
and carrier pipe will still be required along with casing seals and casing spacers. 

 
Q-50: Would 48” I.D. restrained joint Ductile Iron Pipe (TR Flex or Fastite) be allowed as an 

alternate to the 54” OD HDPE carrier pipe?  There isn’t sufficient room for the tail ditch 
necessary to pull in the 420’ fused string of HDPE. 

 
A-50: Restrained joint ductile iron pipe will not be considered as an alternative.  The HDPE 

pipe can be fused in stages or segments and requires a minimum bending radius that is 
compliant with the site geometry. Refer to sheet 2 for easements. 

 
Q-51: A MTBM (micro-tunneling) operation will require roughly 7,500 SF at the downstream 

end of the tunnel for equipment setup.  Will an additional easement be provided? 
 
A-51: The site laydown area can be extended to the easement extent, which contains over 7,500 

SF at the downstream end of the trenchless connection as well as over 40 LF that can be 
used for the launch pit. Refer to sheet 2 for easement constraints that must be maintained. 

 
Q-52: The tunnel operation generally runs as a 10 – 12 hour workday with the possibility of 

24/7 if difficulties are encountered.  Will the work hour restrictions be adjusted to allow 
for this? 

 
A-52: Hours may be extended if difficulties in operation due to various reasons are 

encountered. Advanced written notice with a minimum of 48-hours in advance and 
approval by the City prior to extending shift hours. Consideration may be granted for 
extending daily working hours. It is the intent to have the owner or owner’s 
representative onsite during excavation. Extending hours for items such as set-up and 
cleaning of the slurry separation system post excavation, if excavation is not performed, 
may be considered. 

 
 Emergency work may be done with prior consent provided the Contractor notifies the 

Project Engineer prior to beginning the work. 
 
Q-53: The geotech report notes the presence of cobbles in all five (5) of the tunnel alignment 

borings.  However, the size, density, and nesting of the cobbles is not indicated.  All three 
of these factors determine whether the MTBM method is feasible or not.  Can test pits at 
either end and/or the middle of the tunnel alignment be dug by the City prior to the bid to 
allow a visual of what will be encountered so that the proper tunnel method may be 
determined? 

 
A-53: The USCS classification system indirectly defines the size and density of gravel and 

cobbles. Definitions such as Sandy GRAVEL and COBBLES (GW) indicate a range of 
greater than 50% of the material encountered will be gravel or cobbles. Additionally, 
blow counts are provided in the geotechnical boring logs which provide a relative density 



                                                                                               
 
 

                                      

where samples were taken. A test pit was provided by the City for those who attended the 
pre-bid meeting. 

 
Q-54: After discussion at the pre-bid, observation of the test pit dug near BH-5, and the limited 

information provided with the soils report, can the contractor assume for bidding 
purposes that the largest cobble to be encountered will be 9-inches, and if larger cobble is 
encountered, it will be considered a change in conditions? 

 
A-54: The Contractor shall be fully aware that this bore is taking place in cobble rock that is 

classified as GW material per the geotech report with groundwater present.  The City 
can’t guarantee what size of cobble rocks will be encountered and the City will not 
commit to a changed conditions scenario at this stage of the bidding process.  During the 
pre-bid meeting, Mike Berry with Huddleston-Berry Engineering and Testing commented 
that there could be the potential to encounter large cobble rock(s) that are 12-inches and 
greater in size, but the vast majority of cobble rocks encountered should be 6-inches and 
smaller.  The test pit the City dug on Friday, July 14th in the southwest corner of the 
Persigo property showed the bidders the size rock that should be typical during this 
project which appears to be 6-inch minus cobbles.  The boring contractor should prepare 
their bid with the understanding that larger cobbles could potentially be encountered. 

 
Q-55: Can we get a Castings MH-310-24 bolt down approved for the manhole covers?  Less 

money per each than the Neenah R-1574’s shown on the plans. 
 
A-55: The City will allow both the Neenah R-1574 and the Castings MH-310-24 bolt down 

(locking) lids for use on this project. 
 
Q-56: Can the project deadline be extended if river work is accomplished within specified time?  

We feel there is not adequate time in 82 days to complete the entire project. 
 
A-56: See revised time of completion in this Addendum. 
 
 
 












































































